ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COVWM TTEE ON M LI TARY AND VETERANS' AFFAI RS
March 26, 2013
1:22 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Neal Foster, Co-Chair
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Co-Chair
Representati ve Pete Hi ggins
Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes
Representative Lora Reinbold
Representati ve Dan Saddl er

Representati ve Max G uenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 180
"An Act relating to the Al aska Challenge Youth Acadeny; and
providing for an effective date."
- MOVED HB 180 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 180

SHORT TI TLE: M LI TARY YOUTH ACADEMY
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) T. W LSON

03/ 20/ 13 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 20/ 13 (H MLV
03/ 26/ 13 (H M.V AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE TAWM E W LSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the sponsor of HB 180.

MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Deputy Conm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner/ Adjutant General
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA)

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -1- March 26, 2013



Joi nt Base El nendorf-Ri chardson, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 180 and answered
guesti ons.

MAJOR GENERAL THOVAS KATKUS, Conmi ssi oner/ Adj utant GCener al
Department of Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs (DWA)

Joi nt Base El nendorf-Ri chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 180 and answered
gquesti ons.

CLYDE T. (TOM BURTON, Division Director

Al aska Mlitary Youth Acadeny

Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA)

Joi nt Base El nendorf-R chardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 180 and answered
guesti ons.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
1: 22: 53 PM

COCHAIR NEAL FOSTER called the House Special Commttee on
Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting to order at 1:22 p.m
Representatives LeDoux, Guenberg, Saddler, Reinbold, Hughes,
and Foster were present at the call to order. Representative
Hi ggins arrived as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 180-M LI TARY YOUTH ACADEMY

1: 23: 32 PM

CO CHAI R FOSTER announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 180, "An Act relating to the Al aska Chall enge
Yout h Acadeny; and providing for an effective date."

1:23:56 PM
REPRESENTATIVE TAMME W LSON, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
paraphrased from the sponsor statenent, which read [original

punct uation provided]:

The Al aska Mlitary Yout h Acadeny has seen
unparal l eled success in serving Alaska's at-risk

yout h. A mlitary-style 24-hour school, the AMYA
serves only high school drop-outs between the ages of
16 and 19.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 2- March 26, 2013



In alnmost 20 vyears of operation, the AMYA has
graduated nore than 4,000 cadets. Li ke any program
the AMYA started out small and has grown to graduating
about 300 cadets each year.

The funding fornmula that currently serves the AWA is
outdated and nust be changed. It was designed to
protect a fledgling program from the budget cuts
associated with $9-barrel oil prices. The AMYA has
weat hered the storm and proven itself as a successful
programthat can stand on its own nerits.

Wth this proven track record, it is time to nove the
Acadeny to a direct appropriation based on the nunber
of cadets that graduate.

1:25:40 PM
MCHUGH Pl ERRE, Deput y Comm ssi oner, Ofice of t he
Comm ssi oner/ Adj ut ant CGeneral , Depar t ment of Mlitary &

Veterans’ Affairs (DWA), expressed DWA' s support of HB 180 and
stated that this step is necessary to take the program to the
next | evel of excellence.

1:26: 32 PM
CO CHAI R FOSTER opened public testinony.
1:26: 56 PM

MAJOR GENERAL THOVAS  KATKUS, Comm ssi oner/ Adj ut ant DIWA,
informed the conmttee the Alaska Mlitary Youth Acadeny
("Acadeny") reaches about 300 youth per vyear out of the
approximately 3,000 at-risk youth who drop out of the school
syst ens. This is a very effective program wth proven
statistics showing a 20-year record of success. He said at this
poi nt the Acadeny is seeking to close the gap between the nunber
of students who enroll and who graduate. To acconplish this,
the funding fornula should be driven by results-based direct
appropriation with the objective to graduate the maxi mum nunber
of students possible. Maj or GCeneral Katkus said the current
formula is m sguided.

1: 28: 49 PM

CLYDE T. (TOM BURTON, Division Director, Alaska MIlitary Youth
Acadeny, DWA, explained that the focus of the Acadeny is on the

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 3- March 26, 2013



quality of its service to students, parents, conmunities, and
the state. He said the Acadeny provides direct support for key
progranms such as the Choose Respect canpaign, and students cone
for many reasons, only one of which is academ c. Mbst inportant
is to provide students with an opportunity to change their |ives
and proceed to a successful future. The mssion of the Acadeny
is to inprove the situation of the youth in Al aska.

1:29: 50 PM
[ CO- CHAI R FOSTER passed the gavel to CO CHAI R LEDOUX. ]

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES stated her support for the program She
asked whether the legislation will allow the Acadeny to grow and
reach nore than 10 percent of at-risk students.

MR. BURTON said the Acadeny has the ability to grow
increnentally; wultimately, structural |imts wll be reached,
but at this time, the canp is "sized correctly.” At 10 percent
of Al aska's drop-out population, the Acadeny has had nore of an
i npact than has any other state. Although the exact estinmate is
unknown, he opined the Acadeny can raise its effective rate to
15 percent or 20 percent.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether students are ever turned
away.

MR. BURTON said the Acadeny does not turn anyone away, which is
different from other programs which "screen for success.” The
Acadeny's philosophy is to provide all that is possible for
students in eight core conponents that include life skills, job
skills, academ cs, and physical fitness, in order to build a
sound body and m nd.

MAJOR CENERAL KATKUS added that the National Guard is involved
in this program because 20 years ago the nunber of at-risk youth
and drop-outs was seen as a security risk to the nation.
Therefore, the U S. Departnent of Defense (USDOD) put resources
t owar ds addr essi ng t hat pr obl em Thr ough a di rect
appropriation, comunities and government wll also becone
i nvol ved, and the program could expand with nore recruitnment and
a different enphasis. He advised that a new system of funding,
in response to DWA' s justification for funds and articulation
of goals and objectives, is the correct way to secure the right
anmount of support and funding, instead of by a fornmula "on
autopilot.”

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -4- March 26, 2013



1: 34: 04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked whether a direct appropriation would
result in benefits such as additional access to federal funding.

MAJOR GENERAL KATKUS said currently, receiving federal funds
offsets state funds, thus if federal funds are received state
noni es have to be returned to the Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent (EED). This happens late in the year and
there is no incentive to seek additional funding. Under a
direct appropriation, DWA can seek additional funding and
grants to grow the program wi t hout being penalized.

MR. BURTON agr eed. For exanple, an increase in the graduation
rate led to increased federal funds, but the funds went to EED
and were not a net gain to the Acadeny.

1:36:12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for the proportion of federal to
state funds allotted to the Acadeny.

MAJOR GENERAL KATKUS said Al aska provides approximately 70
percent and the federal governnment provides approxinmately 30
percent, which is "reversed" when conpared to other states.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether DWA is concerned about
abandoning a fixed, reliable, fornmula in the face of |oomng
state and federal budget chall enges.

MAJOR GENERAL KATKUS opined all funding sources whether fixed,
formula, or direct appropriation, are not secure at this tine.
However, the best way to face funding challenges is for the

| eadership of the Acadeny to articulate its needs. In further
response to Representative Saddler, he said it is possible the
Acadeny will receive nore funding through direct appropriation
because it supports many of the governor's prograns and
additional investnents in the program wll result in big
payoffs.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER expressed his support for the program
1:39:40 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted HB 180 changes the nanme of the

Acadeny to the Alaska Mlitary Youth Acadeny. He said there is
a technical issue in that the bill wll not just affect funding

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 5- March 26, 2013



but will involve the establishnent of the Acadeny. He opi ned
the "catch line" should "be amended to reflect what's going on
inthe bill."

MAJOR GENERAL KATKUS deferred to the sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, after further reflection on this
i ssue, asked the commttee to disregard his coments regarding
the "catch |ine" because the entire statute i s being repeal ed.

1:42:16 PM
[ CO- CHAI R LEDOUX passed t he gavel to CO CHAI R FOSTER. ]

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG then pointed out that repealing a
statute in the mddle of the fiscal year and establishing a
different regine - with an effective date of January 1 - nmay
cause a problem for continued funding.

MR. PIERRE said he and the sponsor worked carefully to address
the funding transition from one year to the next. Legi sl ative
Legal Services, Legislative Affairs Agency, and the Departnent
of Law determned the January 1 date was appropriate, because
there was no rush to nmake the change. Instead, the goal was how
to best nove the Acadeny division forward, thus the Base Student
Al location (BSA) formula funding will continue in July, and this
fall the new budget process will begin with a "general match
plan" and justification for a direct appropriation that will go
into effect July 1, 2014, Fiscal Year 2015 (FY 15). In further
response to Representative Guenberg, he explained that DWA
will receive funds in July 2013, for the next year.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about the inpact on the Acadeny's
ability to receive federal funds during the federal fiscal year

MR. PIERRE assured the conmittee there will not be a negative
i mpact due to the timing, but the Acadeny will be in a position
to receive federal funds if they becone avail abl e.

1:46:21 PM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG stated that according to docunents
provided in the conmttee packet, the Acadeny was forned in

1994, but AS 14.30. 740 was not enacted until 2002. He asked for
the statutory framework that was utilized between 1994 and 2002.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 6- March 26, 2013



MR. PIERRE said funding was through direct appropriation. There
was match funding, but the fledgling program at that time was
unabl e to produce satisfactory results; however, the environnent
and needs of the Acadeny have changed and direct appropriation
i S needed now.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether there was regulation or
statutory authority prior to 2002.

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON acknow edged the |egislature was giving
noney to the Acadeny wthout authority, which led to its
pl acenent in statute. One additional reason for this change, in
addition to the fact the Acadeny is successful, is to ensure the
Acadeny has the funds it truly needs rather than estimates for
each year.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed the Acadeny began in 1994 with
no authority, the funding program was put in statute in 2002

and now the Acadeny is established in Section 2 of HB 180. He
expressed his strong support of the program and suggested it
shoul d be established permanently in |aw by an anendnent to page
2, line [4], that replaces the word "may" with the word "shall™
inthe bill.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said her wunderstanding is that the
Acadeny has already been established. Furt hernore, because
there is a conpanion bill, she is nore confortable with the
| anguage as written.

1: 50: 39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG cauti oned t hat wi t hout ot her
| egislation, a future adm nistration could abolish the Acadeny.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON nmintained her preference for the
| anguage in the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for the reason behind the nane
change.

MR. PIERRE responded that the sponsor and |eadership at DWA
sought to establish the name throughout statute and that the
Acadeny is conmmonly known as the Alaska MIlitary Youth Acadeny.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER has heard the Acadeny referred to as the
Yout h Cor ps.

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -7- March 26, 2013



MR. PIERRE noted DWA seeks to avoid confusion with Job Corps
and Youth Acadeny or the Acadeny is distinct fromthat.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES inquired as to the amount of funding
acquired by the Acadeny this year.

MR. PIERRE estimated total funding for the Acadeny was $9.3
mllion.

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES pointed out that if HB 180 passes, funding
for the Acadeny will be reduced from the EED budget and she
stressed that should not be construed as a cut to funding for
educati on.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON will ask EED to reflect that change.
MR. PIERRE clarified the anbunt is roughly $6 mllion.
1:55:14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD stated that she has heard wonderful
testinony regardi ng the Acadeny.

REPRESENTATIVE HIGA NS recalled neeting with M. Pierre and
appreci ated his confidence in the program He has known yout hs
who have done wel|l at the Acadeny.

MR. PIERRE attributed the Acadeny's success and that of DWA to
t he | eadership of General Katkus and the governor.

1: 57: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HUGHES asked how many graduates go into the
mlitary or on to coll ege.

MR. BURTON said after the nost recent graduation of 144
students, 33 went into the mlitary. The Acadeny reaches al nost
100 percent placenent, which neans graduates return to high
school, go on to college, find a full-tinme job, or join the
military. O her successes are in physical fitness and respect
for famly.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON added that students return to their
community with a support teamto follow their progress.

2:01: 08 PM

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE - 8- March 26, 2013



The committee took an at-ease from2:01 p.m to 2:02 p. m
2:03:04 PM

CO- CHAIR FOSTER, after ascertaining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony.

2:03: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER noved to report HB 180 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 180 was reported from the
House Special Comrittee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs.
2:03:48 PM

ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Special Committee on Mlitary and Veterans' Affairs neeting was
adj ourned at 2:03 p. m

HOUSE MLV COW TTEE -9- March 26, 2013



